

JUNE 9, 2022, 2:00 p.m. - CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING CITY GOVERNMENT OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS OF THE MAYOR AND ALDERMEN SAVANNAH, GEORGIA

The regular meeting of the City Council was held at <u>2:20 p.m.</u> Mayor Johnson recognized <u>Alderwoman Gibson-Carter</u> who introduced <u>Apostle J. R. Taylor, dedicated member of The United House of Prayer for All People,</u> to offer the invocation. The Pledge of Allegiance was recited in unison.

PRESENT: Mayor Van R. Johnson, II, Presiding

Alderwoman Kesha Gibson-Carter, At-Large, Post 1

Alderwoman Alicia Miller Blakely, At-Large, Post 2

Alderwoman Bernetta B. Lanier, District 1

Alderman Detric Leggett, District 2

Alderwoman Linda Wilder-Bryan, District 3

Alderman Nick Palumbo, District 4, Vice-Chairman

Alderwoman Dr. Estella Edwards Shabazz, District 5, Mayor Pro-Tem

Alderman Kurtis Purtee, District 6

ALSO, PRESENT:

City Manager Joseph A. Melder

Chief of Staff Daphanie Williams

City Attorney Bates Lovett

Clerk of Council Mark Massey

Deputy Clerk of Council Margaret Fox

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

1. Adoption of the Regular Meeting Agenda for June 9, 2022.

Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz moved to adopt/approve the agenda for June 9, 2022, seconded by Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan and Alderman Palumbo. The motion passed unanimously.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

2. Approval of the Minutes for the Work Session and City Manager's Briefing Held on May 26, 2022, at 4:30 p.m.

Exhibit 1: Draft Minutes - May 26, 2022 City Council Workshop.pdf

Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz moved to approve Items #2 and #3, seconded by Alderwoman Miller Blakely and Alderman Leggett. The motion passed unanimously.

3. Approval of the Minutes for the Regular Meeting Held on May 26, 2022, at 6:30 p.m.

Exhibit 1: Draft Minutes - May 26, 2022 City Council Regular Meeting.pdf

Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz moved to approve Items #2 and #3, seconded by Alderwoman Miller Blakely and Alderman Leggett. The motion passed unanimously.

PRESENTATIONS

4. Appearance by Members of PROUD Savannah Taskforce in Observance of Pride Month.

Alderman Purtee provided a brief overview of when and why PRIDE month started and introduced the members of the Savannah PROUD Taskforce: Chair Pastor Candace Hardnett, Board Chair of First City PRIDE Center Dusty Church, Pam Miller, Samantha Sosobee, and Erika Hardnett.

Pastor Hardnett thanked Mayor and Council for acknowledging June as Savannah's PRIDE month and the recognition for taskforce members. Each member of the Taskforce thanked Council Members for the opportunity to appear and speak to express their thanks for the recognition.

Mayor Johnson and other Members of Council thanked the Taskforce for their local work. The PRIDE Flag is hanging in the City's Rotunda. Beginning in July there will be a launch of a National Suicide Helpline (988) for individuals experiencing challenges.

5. Appearance by and Recognition of the Municipal Archives Staff for Documenting and Preserving Savannah's History.

Mayor Johnson introduced Municipal Archives Director Luciana Spracher and her team for documenting the history of Savannah. Ms. Spracher introduced the members of her team (Kelly Zacovic and Megan Keikhoff) and their respective responsibilities/specialty. She thanked Mayor and Council for the opportunity to speak about the history of Savannah and for the department's honor and recognition.

Chief Operating Officer Bret Bell, City Manager Melder, Mayor Johnson and several Council Members thanked the municipal archives team for their tireless documentation of the history of the city.

Alderwoman Gibson-Carter gave a brief history of the 'Weeping Time' and representatives of the Weeping Time Coalition stood for recognition. Alderwoman Gibson-Carter recommended the municipal archives department remember to provide a history/story of the weeping time event.

ADDED after Item #5:

Mayor Johnson took a point of personal privilege to discuss the history of Juneteenth and the meaning of the holiday, as well as various events to be held in the city (events are posted on the city's web page) and a Flag to be raised in the Rotunda at City Hall. This year marks the first year the City, as well as Federal offices, will celebrate Juneteenth as a Holiday on Monday, June 20, 2022.

Mayor Johnson read a portion of 'the Emancipation Proclamation reaches Savannah' from the book entitled, 'Saving Savannah' by Jacqueline Jones.

Alderwoman Gibson-Carter recognized long-time organizer Marilyn Jackson for working on the Juneteenth celebration at 38th Street Park for years. She commended City Manager Melder for working with Ms. Jackson and her committee in developing a plan and budget for the celebration. Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz recognized Ms. Jackson and the Daughters of Mary Magdalene for their continued recognition and celebration of Juneteenth for years before anyone would honor the date. She thanked City Manager Melder for his support.

Alderwoman Lanier recognized Mr. Ivy Cohen for his support. Mayor Johnson thanked prior Mayors Edna Jackson and Otis Johnson along with prior Aldermen for their support of the Juneteenth celebration.

ALCOHOL LICENSE HEARINGS - (CITY MANAGER RECOMMENDS APPROVAL OF ALL ITEMS IN THIS SECTION UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE)

6. Approval of a Class C (Beer, Wine) (By the Drink) Alcohol License with Sunday Sales to Jeffrey L. Geiger for NCG Cinemas, a Movie Theater at 3001 Skidaway Road between E. Victory Drive and E. 50th Street in Aldermanic District 3. (Continued from May 26, 2022)

Exhibit 1: Checklist - NCG Cinemas.pdf

Exhibit 2: Density Map - NCG Cinemas.pdf

Exhibit 3: Alcohol Reports - NCG Cinemas.pdf

Exhibit 4: Measurement Report - NCG Cinemas.pdf

Exhibit 5: Security Plan - NCG Cinemas.pdf

Mayor Johnson declared the alcohol hearings open for Items #6 and #10.

a. Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz moved to close the alcohol hearings for Items #6 and #10, seconded by Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan and Alderman Palumbo. The motion passed unanimously.

b. Alderwoman Wilder Bryan moved to approve Item #6, seconded by Alderwoman Gibson-Carter. The motion passed unanimously.

7. Approval of a Class C (Liquor, Beer, Wine) (By the Drink) Alcohol License with Sunday Sales to Brittany O'Neal for Cru Lounge, A Restaurant at 1639 E. Victory Drive in Aldermanic District 3. (Continued from May 12, 2022 - No City Manager Recommendation at this time).

Exhibit 1: Checklist - Cru Lounge.pdf

Exhibit 2: Density Map - Cru Lounge.pdf

Exhibit 3: Alcohol Documents - Cru Lounge.pdf

Exhibit 4: Measurement Report - Cru Lounge.pdf

Exhibit 5: Security Plan - Cru Lounge.pdf

City Attorney Lovett requested Item #7 be continued to the July 14, 2022, City Council Meeting at the request of the petitioner.

Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan moved to continue/hold Item #7 to the July 14, 2022, City Council Meeting, seconded by Alderman Leggett and Alderman Palumbo. The motion passed unanimously.

8. Approval of a Class C (Liquor, Beer, Wine) (By the Drink) Alcohol License with Sunday Sales to David Sampson for Civic Center Main Lobby & Johnny Mercer Theater, an Event Venue at 301 W. Oglethorpe Avenue between Montgomery and Barnard Streets in Aldermanic District 2. (Continued from May 26, 2022 - Withdrawn per petitioner request).

Exhibit 1: Checklist - Ovations Food Service.pdf

Exhibit 2: Density Map - Ovations Food Service.pdf

Exhibit 3: Alcohol Reports - Ovations Food Service.pdf

Exhibit 4: Measurement Report - Ovations Food Service.pdf

Exhibit 5: Security Plan - Civic Center.pdf

City Manager Melder reported, and Mayor Johnson announced, Items #8 and #9 are withdrawn at the applicant's request.

9. Approval of a Class G (Complimentary Service) Alcohol License to Andrea K. White for Southern Tan and Wellness, a Spa at 213 East Broad Street Between East Oglethorpe Avenue and E. Hull Street in Aldermanic District 2.

Exhibit 1: Checklist - Southern Tan & Wellness.pdf

Exhibit 2: Density Map - Southern Tan & Wellness.pdf

Exhibit 3: Alcohol Reports - Southern Tan & Wellness.pdf

Exhibit 4: Measurement Report - Southern Tan & Wellness.pdf

Exhibit 5: Security Plan - Southern Tan & Wellness.pdf

City Manager Melder reported, and Mayor Johnson announced, Items #8 and #9 are withdrawn at the applicant's request.

10. Approval of a Class C (Liquor, Beer, Wine) (By the Drink) Alcohol License with Sunday Sales to Charles Brazil for Old Savannah Distillery, a Restaurant at 245 Montgomery Street Between West Oglethorpe Avenue and West Liberty Street in Aldermanic District 2.

Exhibit 1: Checklist - Old Town Distillery.pdf

Exhibit 2: Density Map - Old Town Distillery.pdf

Exhibit 3: Alcohol Reports - Old Town Distillery.pdf

Exhibit 4: Measurement Report - Old Town Distillery.pdf

Exhibit 5: Security Plan - Old Savannah Distillery.pdf

Mayor Johnson declared the alcohol hearings open for Items #6 and #10.

- **a.** Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz moved to close the alcohol hearings for Items #6 and #10, seconded by Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan and Alderman Palumbo. The motion passed unanimously.
- **b.** Alderman Leggett moved to approve Item #10, seconded by Alderman Palumbo. The motion passed unanimously.

ZONING HEARINGS

11. Travis Stringer on Behalf of Beth Vantosh is Requesting a Special Use Permit at 11 East 40th Street (20074 01003) for a Parking Lot Use. The parcel is zoned TC-1 (Traditional Commercial - 1) in Aldermanic District 2. This will operate as a remote private parking lot for overflow parking at Starland Village. (File No. 22-001608-ZA).

Exhibit 1: MPC Recommendation Packet - 11 E. 40th Street (File No. 22-01608-ZA)

Exhibit 2: Maps - 11 E. 40th Street (File No. 22-001608-ZA)

Exhibit 3: Remote Parking Lot Concept

Exhibit 4: Surface Parking Sample Elevation Before - After

Mayor Johnson declared the zoning hearing open for Item #11.

Speaker(s):

- Marcus Lotson, MPC Representative MPC recommended approval.
- **a.** Alderman Leggett moved to close the zoning hearing for Item #11, seconded by Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan and Alderman Palumbo. The motion passed unanimously.

Alderwoman Gibson-Carter asked Alderman Leggett if he had received an email from Virginia Mobley opposing the parking lot. Alderman Leggett acknowledged the email was received but even though she opposed, the HOA voted to support the special use permit. She also asked if resident Wendy Picone's concerns expressed to Council at the meeting of May 26th were addressed. Alderman Leggett replied, Ms. Picone's concerns were resolved.

Alderwoman Lanier asked Mr. Lotson if MPC had any discussions concerning the special use permit process as a policy initiative. Mr. Lotson indicated MPC had no conversations with city staff concerning the special use permit process, but the process is new and an important part of the ordinance process. MPC is willing to meet with staff to discuss the process if there are specific concerns. Alderwoman Lanier asked City Manager Melder if city staff would be looking at discussions concerning the special use permit process. Mr. Melder indicated it is a good ordinance. Alderwoman Lanier discussed her concerns with the process and if it is the best practice.

Mayor Johnson stated the special use permit process gives the staff and Council another layer of protection, scrutiny, review and decision making for properties. The process allows for flexibility and subjectivity. It is up to Council if they would like to have further dialogue on the process.

b. Alderman Leggett moved to approve Item #11, seconded by Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan. The motion passed unanimously.

PURCHASING ITEMS - (CITY MANAGER RECOMMENDS APPROVAL OF ALL ITEMS IN THIS SECTION UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE)

12. Authorize the City Manager to Execute a Contract for Grounds Maintenance of Medians, Cul-De-Sacs, & Adjacent Rights-of-Ways to Venson Lawn and Landscape (LOCAL, DBE) (Primary) and J Corbett Enterprise, Inc. (LOCAL, DBE) (Secondary) in an Amount up to \$435,000. Contract will provide grounds maintenance of approximately 69 miles of medians and rights-of-ways within City limits. (Park and Tree)

Exhibit 1: Funding Verification - Grounds Maintenance of Medians, Cul-De-Sacs, & Adjacent ROW.pdf

Exhibit 2: Purchasing Notes - Grounds Maintenance of Medians, Cul-De-Sacs, & Adjacent ROW.pdf

Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz informed the public and expressed her thanks for the ground maintenance contract which was awarded to local and DBE vendors. The policies and procedures established by the city work for the local and DBE businesses.

Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz moved to approve Item #12, seconded by Alderman Leggett and Alderman Palumbo. The motion passed unanimously.

13. Authorize the City Manager to Execute a Contract for Six Electric Charging Stations with LilyPad EV in the Amount of \$42,299. The charging stations will be used in the Bryan and State Street garages by customers to charge electric vehicles. (Parking & Mobility)

Exhibit 1: Funding Verification - Electric Charging Stations.pdf

Exhibit 2: Purchasing Note - Electric Charging Stations.pdf

Mayor Johnson stated 100% Savannah. The city is moving toward its goal to structure the city's garages to accommodate electric vehicles.

Alderwoman Gibson-Carter would like to see equity by partnering with midtown and Southside affiliates to include charging stations in those garages.

Alderman Palumbo moved to approve Item #13, seconded by Alderwoman Gibson-Carter, Alderman Leggett and Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan. The motion passed unanimously.

14. Authorize the City Manager to Execute a Contract for Protective Coatings Services with Mechanical Jobbers Marketing (Primary) & Dun-Right Services (Secondary) in the Amount of \$510,580. The protective coating application protects concrete sanitary sewer structures from hydrogen sulfide acid generated by microbiological sources present in the wastewater environment. (Conveyance and Distribution)

Exhibit 1: Funding Verification - Protective Coating Services.pdf

Exhibit 2: Purchasing Note - Protective Coating Services.pdf

Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz moved to approve Items #14, #17, #18 and #19, seconded by Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan. The motion passed unanimously.

15. Authorize the City Manager to Execute a Contract for the Construction of a New Force Main to Serve Lift Station 166 with BRW Construction Group, LLC in the Amount of \$5,971,495. The current 8" force main was built to serve only the initial phases of development and is undersized to serve the area as it approaches full development. (Public Works)

Exhibit 1: Funding Verification - Lift Station 166.pdf

Exhibit 2: Purchasing Notes - Lift Station 166.pdf

Alderwoman Gibson-Carter asked City Manager Melder if this item relates to or impacts the canal district. Mr. Melder indicated Item #15 is specific to The Highlands and increasing the infrastructure and Item #16 is citywide and enterprise wide. Because of the financial investment of the city, Alderwoman Gibson-Carter requested monthly financial reports.

Alderman Palumbo moved to approve Items #15 and #16, seconded by Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan. The motion passed unanimously.

16. Authorize the City Manager to Execute an Annual Contract for Trenchless Sewer & Stormwater Line Rehabilitation with American Infrastructure Technologies (Primary) and Southeast Pipe Survey, Inc. (Local) (Secondary) in the Amount of \$7,600,000. These services are for the rehabilitation of the sewer main, stormwater main, and manholes within the City. (Public Works)

Exhibit 1: Funding Verification - Trenchless Line Repair.pdf

Exhibit 2: Purchasing Note - Trenchless Line Repair.pdf

Alderwoman Gibson-Carter asked City Manager Melder if this item relates to or impacts the canal district. Mr. Melder indicated Item #15 is specific to The Highlands and increasing the infrastructure and Item #16 is citywide and enterprise wide. Because of the financial investment of the city, Alderwoman Gibson-Carter requested monthly financial reports.

Alderman Palumbo moved to approve Items #15 and #16, seconded by Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan. The motion passed unanimously.

17. Authorize the City Manager to Execute a Contract for Underground Utility Access Monitoring Devices with Kazmier & Associates LLC in the Amount of \$125,000. This equipment provides a warning in the event of sanitary sewer overflows in the City's underground utility access monitoring devices. (Sewer Maintenance & Lift Station)

Exhibit 1: Funding Verification - Monitoring Devices.pdf

Exhibit 2: Purchasing Note - Monitoring Devices.pdf

Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz moved to approve Items #14, #17, #18 and #19, seconded by Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan. The motion passed unanimously.

18. Authorize the City Manager to Execute a Contract for Cellular Service For Underground Utility Monitor Devices with Mission Communications, LLC in the Amount of \$125,000. Over 250 monitoring devices will provide real-time cellular communication for the City's sanitary sewer system. (Sewer Maintenance & Lift Station)

Exhibit 1: Funding Verification - Cellular Service for Underground Utility Devices.pdf

Exhibit 2: Purchasing Note - Cellular Service for Underground Utility Devices.pdf

Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz moved to approve Items #14, #17, #18 and #19, seconded by Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan. The motion passed unanimously.

19. Authorize the City Manager to Execute a Contract for a Switch Gear Controller with Nixon Power Services in the Amount of \$157,500. This switch gear controller will transfer power from utility to generator power in the event of a power outage at the Water Reclamation Plant, as well as transfer power from generator power to utility power once power is restored. (Water Reclamation)

Exhibit 1: Funding Verification - Switch Gear Controller.pdf

Exhibit 2: Purchasing Note - Switch Gear Controller.pdf

Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz moved to approve Items #14, #17, #18 and #19, seconded by Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan. The motion passed unanimously.

20. Authorize the City Manager to Execute a Contract for the Design of a Wetlands Preserve Park Educational & Interpretive Trail with CHA (LOCAL) in the Amount of \$167,994. The park will provide enhanced green space, walkability and access to preserved wetlands and ponds north of the railroad tracks in the Canal District through an interpretive trail system. (Office of Sustainability)

Exhibit 1: Funding Verification - Wetlands Preserve Park.pdf

Exhibit 2: Canal District Wetlands Preserve Park Conceptual Plan.pdf

Exhibit 3: Canal District Master Plan Wetlands Preserve Park.pdf

Exhibit 4: Purchasing Notes - Wetlands Preserve Park.pdf

Alderwoman Lanier asked what is the community benefit, how is community engagement being addressed, and what type of company is CHA. She has concerns with the purchasing policy and would like to view/read the policy and she recommended staff consider tweaking the policy. The intended investment is not reaching the residents/community. The same vendors are coming into the low wealth communities with projects and the residents receive no financial benefits.

Mayor Johnson and City Manager Melder indicated the contract was for design and engagement. There were three responses to the bid, two from Atlanta and the awarded vendor, CHA from Savannah. There is a benefit to the community. It will protect the wetlands, protect against stormwater and water mitigation flooding, and produce active engagement of outdoor space and recreation for the community.

If Council is not satisfied with the authentic engagement from staff, City Manager Melder is willing to have staff take steps to include that specific engagement. The bid required 20% DBE participation and CHA provided 49% DBE at the sublevel. City Manager Melder recommends Council's approval to move forward with the CHA contract.

Alderwoman Miller Blakely asked which CHA Consulting, the one on Abercorn Street or the CHA with Savannah Chamber. Director of Purchasing Johnnie Coker indicated the vendor is located at 7 East Bay Street, CHA with Savannah Chamber.

Alderman Palumbo asked City Manager Melder what are the funding sources. Half is grant funded and city funds. Alderman Palumbo sees this as a great opportunity for the city to use grant funds for protection of the wetlands and a benefit for the community to enjoy a local park.

Mayor Johnson expressed his concern with implications that a vendor is not capable of completing the contract and the need to change the procurement process. The process was open and fair as confirmed by the City Manager.

Alderwoman Lanier is pleased with the grant funds, but the city must still be responsible and thoughtful in allocation of the funds. The city should not continue to place money in the hands of the

same people, when the citizens of the area receive no benefits. The policies were created during segregation and should be changed.

- **a.** Alderwoman Lanier moved to continue Item #20 to the July 14, 2022, City Council Meeting, seconded by Alderwoman Miller Blakely. The motion failed, 4-5-0. Mayor Johnson, Alderman Leggett, Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan, Alderman Palumbo and Alderman Purtee voted no.
- **b.** Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan moved to approve Item #20, seconded by Alderman Palumbo. The motion passed, 6-3-0. Alderwoman Gibson-Carter, Alderwoman Miller Blakely and Alderwoman Lanier voted no.

As the city moves forward in being true to the investment as a community and Council Members other than herself, enjoy the benefits of the Enmarket Arena events, Alderwoman Lanier stated the community receives no benefits.

Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan raised a point of order.

Of all the Council, Mayor Johnson indicated he lives the closest to the arena and he has worked on the project longer than any Council Member. The city has purchasing policies based on ordinances and law. The City Manager is confident with the process and recommends approval.

Alderwoman Miller Blakely asked who did the grant. City Manager Melder indicated the Office of Sustainability completed the grant as part of the canal district master plan. Council Members made a trip to Atlanta to view a wetlands preserve, and this is a similar plan for the city's canal district.

SAVANNAH AIRPORT COMMISSION

21. Approval to Execute a Logo Licensing Agreement with Travel & Leisure in the Amount of \$47,995.

Exhibit 1: Logo Licensing Sample.pdf

HEARD after Item #10, per Mayor Johnson.

Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz moved to approve Items #21 through #26, seconded by Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan and Alderman Palumbo. The motion passed unanimously.

22. Approval of a Travel & Leisure National Advertising Co-Op with the Hilton Head Island Chamber of Commerce in the Amount of \$50,000.

Exhibit 1: Travel & Leisure Advertising Sample.pdf

HEARD after Item #10, per Mayor Johnson.

Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz moved to approve Items #21 through #26, seconded by Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan and Alderman Palumbo. The motion passed unanimously.

23. Approval to Procure One (1) Mid-Size, Four-Door, 4x4 Ford Explorer from JC Lewis Ford of Statesboro in the Amount of \$51,225.

HEARD after Item #10, per Mayor Johnson.

Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz moved to approve Items #21 through #26, seconded by Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan and Alderman Palumbo. The motion passed unanimously.

24. Approval to Procure a Mini Excavator from Hendrix Machinery in the Amount of \$57,947.

HEARD after Item #10, per Mayor Johnson.

Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz moved to approve Items #21 through #26, seconded by Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan and Alderman Palumbo. The motion passed unanimously.

25. Approval to Procure One (1) Full Size, Half-Ton, 4x4 F-150 Pick-Up Truck from JC Lewis Ford of Savannah in the Amount of \$64,980.

HEARD after Item #10, per Mayor Johnson.

Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz moved to approve Items #21 through #26, seconded by Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan and Alderman Palumbo. The motion passed unanimously.

26. Approval to Procure Services from KONE, Inc., for the Lifecycle Upgrade of Six (6) Elevator Door Operators in the Amount of \$86,904.

Exhibit 1: Kone Proposal for Savannah Airport Door Operator Upgrade for Schindler Elevators.pdf

HEARD after Item #10, per Mayor Johnson.

Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz moved to approve Items #21 through #26, seconded by Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan and Alderman Palumbo. The motion passed unanimously.

27. Approval to Procure a Wide Area Mower from Owens Collective in the Amount of \$113,894.

At the request of the Savannah Airport Commission, City Manager Melder withdrew Item #27.

REAL ESTATE ITEMS - (CITY MANAGER RECOMMENDS APPROVAL OF ALL ITEMS IN THIS SECTION UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE)

28. Authorize the City Manager to Approve as Surplus and Available for Sale All or Part of Twelve City-owned Parcels to the Georgia Department of Transportation to Facilitate the Ogeechee Road Widening Project.

Exhibit 1: Map - Ogeechee Road.pdf

Exhibit 2: GDOT Ogeechee Road Widening Project Schematics.pdf

Alderwoman Gibson-Carter asked City Manager Melder what Georgia DOT would do with the property. Mr. Melder indicated Georgia DOT has a long-term plan to widen Ogeechee Road and as part of that plan, acquiring land adjacent to that area is necessary.

The residents have concern with the widening of Victory Drive. Assistant City Manager Lloyd stated the property along Victory Drive is wide enough for the Georgia DOT widening project, but the item today is not for Victory Drive it is solely for the Ogeechee Road widening project.

Alderwoman Gibson-Carter indicated there has not been adequate and consistent information shared with the residents along Victory Drive in reference to the Victory Drive widening project from the city or Georgia DOT. She recommended City Manager Melder coordinate a meeting with Ann Purcell to diminish the anxiety among the residents of Victory Drive.

Alderwoman Miller Blakely asked City Manager Melder for the sales price of the property. Mr. Melder indicated the twelve (12) partial parcels of land sold for the appraised value of \$259,314.00.

Alderman Palumbo called for the question.

Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan informed the public the existing two-lane roadway will be widened to include bicycle lanes and a raised median. The existing bridge over CSX railroad would be replaced. A raised culvert would replace the existing culvert at Springfield Canal to relieve any prevalent flooding issue along the hurricane evacuation route.

Alderwoman Lanier raised a concern for residents in relation to the viaduct being altered. Assistant City Manager Lloyd indicated there will not be a round-about at Stiles Avenue, but they will do some improvements.

Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz moved to approve Item #28, seconded by Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan. The motion passed unanimously.

MISCELLANEOUS

29. Approval of a Major Subdivision for Brookhaven Phase 3. This proposed phase totals 15.97 acres and will consist of 39 single family lots with varying lot sizes. Phase 3 is located at the end and being an extension of Shoefstall Street & Brookhaven Drive in Aldermanic District 1.

Exhibit 1: Plat - Page 1 for Major Subdivision Brookhaven Phase 3.pdf

Exhibit 2: Plat - Page 2 for Major Subdivision Brookhaven Phase 3.pdf

Alderwoman Gibson-Carter has concerns with approving subdivisions as it relates to the city not receiving impact fees from developers, due to the delay in approval of the impact fee ordinance by City Council. The development areas are in need of a police station, recreation area, libraries and infrastructure.

Mayor Johnson indicated there will be a workshop in July (the next meeting) for discussion/update of impact fees/impact fee ordinance.

Alderwoman Lanier stressed the importance of a recreation area for the residents in The Highlands noting the small playgrounds installed by the developers are not sufficient for the many subdivisions in the area.

Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz moved to approve Items #29, #30 and #31, seconded by Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan and Alderman Palumbo. The motion passed, 7-2-0. Alderwoman Gibson-Carter and Alderwoman Miller Blakely voted no.

30. Approval of a Major Subdivision for Bradley Point Phase 8. The subject property is the 8th phase in the established subdivision of Bradley Point in Aldermanic District 5. This proposed phase totals 7.673 acres and will consist of 32 single family lots with varying lot sizes.

Exhibit 1: Plat - Major Subdivision Bradley Point Phase 8.pdf

Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz moved to approve Items #29, #30 and #31, seconded by Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan and Alderman Palumbo. The motion passed, 7-2-0. Alderwoman Gibson-Carter and Alderwoman Miller Blakely voted no.

31. Approval of a Major Subdivision for The Pines at New Hampstead Phase 3 & 4 which is a Portion of Parcel 1A and Parcel 1B of New Hampstead Development Area. The property is located to the north of Turpentine Trail of Highgate Boulevard in Aldermanic District 5.

Exhibit 1: Plat - Major Subdivision The Pines at New Hampstead Phase 3 & 4 (Portion of Parcel 1A and Parcel 1B of New Hampstead Development).pdf

Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz moved to approve Items #29, #30 and #31, seconded by Alderwoman Wilder-Bryan and Alderman Palumbo. The motion passed, 7-2-0. Alderwoman Gibson-Carter and Alderwoman Miller Blakely voted no.

Alderwoman Gibson-Carter asked Mayor Johnson to address the letter distributed to Council Member

concerning the plumbing ordinance approved at the May 26, 2022, City Council Meeting. Mayor Johnson indicated the letter was sent to the Clerk of Council. The City Attorney and City Manager will advise on the matter. A response will be prepared for Council and the public. The City Manager will communicate in a more informative fashion for the public to understand.

Mayor Pro-Tem Dr. Shabazz noted there were four (4) minutes of the video taping of the last City Council Meeting missed. Mayor Johnson indicated the system had technical difficulties.

Alderman Palumbo cautioned Council, the discussion does not include items on today's agenda.

Alderwoman Miller Blakely stated she received calls from residents attending events at the Enmarket Arena that the cost is very expensive. Additionally, some type information should be available for residents of the security measures before attending, i.e. no purses, price of food and beverages, parking. City Manager Melder indicated the information is available on the city's website.

Alderwoman Miller Blakely stated alcohol was sold at a gospel event. Residents were upset that alcohol was sold.

Alderman Palumbo moved to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Alderman Leggett and Alderman Purtee

Mayor Johnson adjourned the meeting at 4:27 p.m.

Mark Massey, Clerk of Council

The audio recording of the Council Meeting can be found by copying and inserting the below link in your url:

https://savannahgovtv.viebit.com/player.php?hash=MG6vHSW7uYWK

Date Minutes Approved:	
Signature:	

